
 AMENDED AGENDA – Regular Meeting of Council

Wednesday, September 23, 2020

1:00 PM

Magnetawan Community Centre

Pg # OPENING BUSINESS

1.1          Call to Order

1.2          Adoption of the Agenda 

1.3          Disclosure  of  Pecuniary  Interest

3 1.4          Adoption  of  Previous Minutes

PRESENTATION
8 Chas Anselmo, Senior Manager KPMG, Service Delivery Review

116 Jamie Robinson, Planner MHBC, Second Dwellings

PLANNING MEETING

126 Zoning By-law Amendment Application – 292 Clayton's Bay Trail - Olney - Second Dwelling 
149 Zoning By-law Amendment Application – 537 Rocky Reef Road  - Reid - Second Dwelling 

STAFF REPORTS, MOTIONS AND DISCUSSION
170 2.1 Report from CAO/Clerk Kerstin Vroom, COVID19 Safe Restart Funds

172 2.2 Report from Public Works Superintendent Scott Edwards, Broom Attachment 

174 2.3 Report from Public Works Superintendent Scott Edwards, Digital Radio Upgrades

178 2.4 Report from Parks & Maintenance Manager Steve Robinson,  Parks Tractors

180 2.5 Draft By-law Regional Fire Training Officer Services 2021-2023

201 2.6 Correspondence from Bob McPhail, Next Steps for Regional Fire Department

205 2.7 Correspondence from Town of Parry Sound Supplemental Emergency Medical Services Levy

2.8 Discussion on Engineering for Bridge 11, West Poverty Bay Road

2.9 Discussion on Building Department, Succession Planning 

MUNICIPAL BOARDS AND COMMITTEE MINUTES
207 3.1 Almaguin Community Economic Development (ACED) Minutes August 17, 2020

211 3.2 Almaguin Highlands Health Centre (AHHC) Minutes September 11, 2020

CORRESPONDENCE
213 4.1 Municipality of Tweed Illegal Cannabis Operations Fine 

215 4.2 Bakertilly, Chartered Professional Accountants Audit of the Municipality, Management Letter

218 4.3 Muskoka Algonquin Health Care COVID-19 Update

220 4.4 2020 POA Summary of Operations Quarter 2 Update 

223 4.5 Correspondence from Product Care Association Outstanding June Hazmat Rebate

224 4.6 Request for Tender 2020-08 Guide Rail Inventory

234 4.7 Magnetawan Lock System Brochure 

Page 1 of 311



ACCOUNTS
236 5.1 Accounts in the amount of $283,225.60

BY-LAWS
269 6.1 By-law Fire Establishing and Regulating a Fire Department (E&R)

295 6.2 By-law Regional Fire Training Officer Services 2021-2023

305 6.3 By-law Zoning Amendment Olney 

308 6.4 By-law Zoning Amendment Reid 

CONFIRMING BY-LAW AND ADJOURNMENT
311 7.1 Confirm the Proceedings of Council and Adjourn

Page 2 of 311



Page 3 of 311



Page 4 of 311



Page 5 of 311



Page 6 of 311



Page 7 of 311



Page 8 of 311



Page 9 of 311



Page 10 of 311



Page 11 of 311



Page 12 of 311



Page 13 of 311



Page 14 of 311



Page 15 of 311



Page 16 of 311



Page 17 of 311



Page 18 of 311



Page 19 of 311



Page 20 of 311



Page 21 of 311



Page 22 of 311



Page 23 of 311



Page 24 of 311



Page 25 of 311



Page 26 of 311



Page 27 of 311



Page 28 of 311



Page 29 of 311



Page 30 of 311



Page 31 of 311



Page 32 of 311



Page 33 of 311



Page 34 of 311



Page 35 of 311



Page 36 of 311



Page 37 of 311



Page 38 of 311



Page 39 of 311



Page 40 of 311



Page 41 of 311



Page 42 of 311



Page 43 of 311



Page 44 of 311



Page 45 of 311



Page 46 of 311



Page 47 of 311



Page 48 of 311



Page 49 of 311



Page 50 of 311



Page 51 of 311



Page 52 of 311



Page 53 of 311



Page 54 of 311



Page 55 of 311



Page 56 of 311



Page 57 of 311



Page 58 of 311



Page 59 of 311



Page 60 of 311



Page 61 of 311



Page 62 of 311



Page 63 of 311



Page 64 of 311



Page 65 of 311



Page 66 of 311



Page 67 of 311



Page 68 of 311



Page 69 of 311



Page 70 of 311



Page 71 of 311



Page 72 of 311



Page 73 of 311



Page 74 of 311



Page 75 of 311



Page 76 of 311



Page 77 of 311



Page 78 of 311



Page 79 of 311



Page 80 of 311



Page 81 of 311



Page 82 of 311



Page 83 of 311



Page 84 of 311



Page 85 of 311



Page 86 of 311



Page 87 of 311



Page 88 of 311



Page 89 of 311



Page 90 of 311



Page 91 of 311



Page 92 of 311



Page 93 of 311



Page 94 of 311



Page 95 of 311



Page 96 of 311



Page 97 of 311



Page 98 of 311



Page 99 of 311



Page 100 of 311



Page 101 of 311



Page 102 of 311



Page 103 of 311



Page 104 of 311



Page 105 of 311



Page 106 of 311



Page 107 of 311



Page 108 of 311



Page 109 of 311



Page 110 of 311



Page 111 of 311



Page 112 of 311



Page 113 of 311



Page 114 of 311



Page 115 of 311



Page 116 of 311



Page 117 of 311



Page 118 of 311



Page 119 of 311



Page 120 of 311



Page 121 of 311



Page 122 of 311



Page 123 of 311



Page 124 of 311



Page 125 of 311



Page 126 of 311



Page 127 of 311



Page 128 of 311



Page 129 of 311



Page 130 of 311



Page 131 of 311



Page 132 of 311



Page 133 of 311



Page 134 of 311



Page 135 of 311



Page 136 of 311



Page 137 of 311



Page 138 of 311



Page 139 of 311



Page 140 of 311



Page 141 of 311



Page 142 of 311



Page 143 of 311



Page 144 of 311



Page 145 of 311



Page 146 of 311



Page 147 of 311



Page 148 of 311



Page 149 of 311



Page 150 of 311



Page 151 of 311



Page 152 of 311



Page 153 of 311



Page 154 of 311



Page 155 of 311



Page 156 of 311



Page 157 of 311



Page 158 of 311



Page 159 of 311



Page 160 of 311



Page 161 of 311



Page 162 of 311



Page 163 of 311



Page 164 of 311



Page 165 of 311



Page 166 of 311



Page 167 of 311



Page 168 of 311



Page 169 of 311



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Recommendation:  THAT Council receives this report as presented and approves the 

recommendations therein. 

 

Background:  At the September 2, 2020 Council meeting, Staff was directed to bring back a 

report to Council outlining the best use of the funds received from MMAH, COVID-19 

Emergency Support Fund in the amount of $250,100. Staff reviewed invoices paid-to-date 

related to COVID as well as prepared an estimate of forecasted expenses.  The Mayor, Deputy 

Mayor, Treasurer and CAO/Clerk met to discuss actual costs, forecasted expenses as well as 

future needs.   

 

Evaluation:  Current expenditures to date are $55,529 and include: Signage, Lost Community 

Centre Rental Revenue, Technology Fire Department, Fire Air Bottles, Back up Battery, Legal 

Fees, By-law Enforcement Fees, Fuel Tank Installation, Soap, Cleaners, Vacuums, Disinfectant, 

Towels, Wipes, Masks, Gloves, Suits, Sanitizer, Front Office Glass Barrier, Wall Hand Sanitizer 

Dispensers, Cones, and Barricades.  It is estimated that approximately $10,000 will be needed to 

replenish supplies in 2021.   No financial valuation has been given to cover wages and/or 

benefits for sick time and/or overtime wages for employees due to COVID-19.      

 

It is recommended that  funds in the amount of $6,500 be set aside for the purchase of laptop 

computers for Staff to be able to work from home if necessary.  Also, Staff has just learned that 

Toshiba has pulled out of Canada and will no longer be providing parts nor service for the 

present phone system and our service technician has retired.  

 

It is also recommended to use $5,000 for a new telephone system with the capability to update 

messages, forward calls to home and/or cell phones and have the ability to retrieve messages 

from outside of the office. Staff has applied for a grant from CTAF (COVID 19 Technology 

Adoption Fund) which is expected to offset most of these costs. 

 

After some discussion, it was agreed that the funds would be best utilized to serve our 

community as a whole and to update the heating systems in our community centres (Friendship 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

To:  Mayor and Council 

From:  Kerstin Vroom, CAO/Clerk 

Date of Meeting:  September 23, 2020 

Report Title:  Safe Restart Funds 

Page 170 of 311



Page 171 of 311



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Recommendation:  THAT Council receives and approves this report as presented. 

 

Background:   

This report is to advise Council regarding the need for a Broom Attachment for the Case 

590 Backhoe #5. Although the Municipality has a Sweeping contract there is a need for 

the ability to start ahead of schedule when weather permits as we are a smaller contract 

hence not at the top of the list. There are also various intersections that could be attended 

to as well as sections of road that need the shoulders swept off to reverse the “Bathtub 

Effect”. This is when the sand builds up on the shoulder and holds in the water which is 

detrimental to the Surface Treatment. 

 

Evaluation: The Public Works Superintendent in previous experience has had this option in the 

Toolkit, it was beneficial as to the cost savings as well as good customer service. The side benefits 

would include assisting the Fire Department for road debris, Parks for pre event clean up of parking 

lots etc. 

 

Financial Implications: 

Budgeted for 2020 was $20,000.00 for a Broom Attachment under Backhoe # 5 – 2014 Case 590, 

Capital Expenditure. In previous years at much a lower rate being $14,000.00 the Municipality 

contracted out the Village, Harbour, 20km of Rural Roads and 20 Intersections to be swept. In 

2020 the contract bid was significantly higher at $40,626.00 in which the decision was made to 

only sweep the Village and Harbour and then  hose down the 20 intersections and leave the 20km 

rural road for the 2020 season and assess the need to continue this practice. We did receive 

numerous complaints and given the Pandemic and not all the Cottagers were present this summer, 

anticipate more for 2021. We also noticed damage to the surface treatment where water has not 

escaped along the shoulders. If we move forward with the purchase of the Broom Attachment and 

do these portions inhouse,  the unit will practically pay for itself the first year and ensure the safety 

of the traveling public and great customer service. 

 

 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

To:  Mayor and Council 

From:  Scott Edwards, Public Works Superintendent 

Date of Meeting:  September 23, 2020 

Report Title:  Broom Attachment Report 

Page 172 of 311



Page 173 of 311



Page 1 of 1 

 

 

Recommendation:  THAT Council receives and approves this Memorandum as presented. 
 

Background:  Historically, the Analog Radio Operations was upgraded to the Digital Operations 

System for the Fire Department with the intent of Public Works also being upgraded to 

communicate with the Fire Department during emergency situations that require assistance. For 

reasons unknown, Public Works was not upgraded and have remained on Analog and relying on 

Cellular Networks to communicate via Cell Phones to the Fire Department. 

Evaluation: It is in the best interest of the Municipality to upgrade the Public Works and Parks 

Department to the Digital Operations System so as to have the ability to communicate with the 

Fire Department during emergency situations such as sanding the roads during a fire , ceasing road 

projects in advance to allow the Fire Department and any EMS through etc. Parks should be 

included as to depending on the emergency and availability of vehicles and Staff may be required 

to respond. 
 

Financial Implications: None –this is included in the 2020 Budget and will be funded through. 
 

Public Works Overhead Digital Radios 1-4-3101-2056 at $30,000.00.  

Parks Overhead Digital Radios 1-4-7205-2056 at $12,000.00 

Combined total of $42,000.00 
 

Current Provider: Spectrum Group Wireless Solutions 
 

Upgrade Repeater System to Digital Operations $7,372.00 

Re & Re Mobile Radios and Access Base $23,775.25 

Re & Re Mobile Radio & Access Bases for Parks $7,199.80 
 

Total amount $38,347.05 before HST 
 

It should be noted that this purchase might qualify as a purchase under the Safe Start Agreement 

Covid-19 funding. 
 

Conclusion: The Public Works Superintendent recommends the upgrade to Digital Operations to 

ensure coordination with the Fire Department to better serve the Residents of Magnetawan and the 

Traveling Public. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

Scott Edwards 

Public Works Superintendent 

 

MEMORANDUM TO COUNCIL 

To:  Mayor and Council 

From:  Scott Edwards, Public Works Superintendent 

Date of Meeting:  September 23, 2020 

Title: Memorandum Digital Radio Upgrades 

Page 174 of 311



Page 175 of 311



Page 176 of 311



Page 177 of 311



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Recommendation:  That Council receives and approves this report as presented for information only. 

 

Background: Council requested a staff report on the Parks Department tractor repairs. Currently the Parks 

Department has two John Deere Tractors, a 2003 John Deere 4110 and a 2010 John Deere Tractor 2720. 

The 2003 John Deere 4110 tractor is used for bucket work, cemetery work and can interchange with the 

snow blowing attachment for sidewalks and parking lots. The 2010 John Deere 2720 tractor is used for 

sidewalk snow blowing, sweeping and bucket work.  

Tractor#1 2003 John Deere 4110 

Year Work Done Cost of Repairs 

2017 Front end work $1,491.22 

2018 New tires, belt, regular maintenance, 

and front-end bearing work. 

$1,538.62 

2019 Front end work  $2,854.77 

2020 Front end work and regular 

maintenance. 

$3,564.67* 

*John Deere Tractor#1 2020 Budget $2,500 

Tractor#2 2010 John Deere 2720 

Year Work Done Cost of Repairs  

2017 New tires, water pump, regular 

maintenance 

$1 226.66 

2018 Blower bracket and regular 

maintenance 

$1,582.10 

2019 Front end work  $5,638.98 

2020 Front end work, steering arms, regular 

maintenance, fabrication of new 

blower bracket 

$4.939.96* 

*John Deere Tractor#2 2020 Budget $5,500 

  

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

To:  Mayor and Council 

From:  Steve Robinson, Parks & Maintenance Manager 

Date of Meeting:  September 23, 2020 

Title:  Parks John Deere Tractor #1 4110 and John Deere Tractor #2 

2720 

Page 178 of 311



Page 179 of 311



Page 180 of 311



Page 181 of 311



Page 182 of 311



Page 183 of 311



Page 184 of 311



Page 185 of 311



Page 186 of 311



Page 187 of 311



Page 188 of 311



Page 189 of 311



Page 190 of 311



Page 191 of 311



Page 192 of 311



Page 193 of 311



Page 194 of 311



Page 195 of 311



Page 196 of 311



Page 197 of 311



Page 198 of 311



Page 199 of 311



Page 200 of 311



Page 201 of 311



Page 202 of 311



Page 203 of 311



Page 204 of 311



Page 205 of 311



Page 206 of 311



Page 207 of 311



Page 208 of 311



Page 209 of 311



Page 210 of 311



Page 211 of 311



Page 212 of 311



Page 213 of 311



Page 214 of 311



Page 215 of 311



Page 216 of 311



Page 217 of 311



Page 218 of 311



Page 219 of 311



Page 220 of 311



Page 221 of 311



Page 222 of 311



Page 223 of 311



Page 224 of 311



Page 225 of 311



Page 226 of 311



Page 227 of 311



Page 228 of 311



Page 229 of 311



Page 230 of 311



Page 231 of 311



Page 232 of 311



Page 233 of 311



Page 234 of 311



Page 235 of 311



Page 236 of 311



Page 237 of 311



Page 238 of 311



Page 239 of 311



Page 240 of 311



Page 241 of 311



Page 242 of 311



Page 243 of 311



Page 244 of 311



Page 245 of 311



Page 246 of 311



Page 247 of 311



Page 248 of 311



Page 249 of 311



Page 250 of 311



Page 251 of 311



Page 252 of 311



Page 253 of 311



Page 254 of 311



Page 255 of 311



Page 256 of 311



Page 257 of 311



Page 258 of 311



Page 259 of 311



Page 260 of 311



Page 261 of 311



Page 262 of 311



Page 263 of 311



Page 264 of 311



Page 265 of 311



Page 266 of 311



Page 267 of 311



Page 268 of 311



Page 269 of 311



Page 270 of 311



Page 271 of 311



Page 272 of 311



Page 273 of 311



Page 274 of 311



Page 275 of 311



Page 276 of 311



Page 277 of 311



Page 278 of 311



Page 279 of 311



Page 280 of 311



Page 281 of 311



Page 282 of 311



Page 283 of 311



Page 284 of 311



Page 285 of 311



Page 286 of 311



Page 287 of 311



Page 288 of 311



Page 289 of 311



Page 290 of 311



Page 291 of 311



Page 292 of 311



Page 293 of 311



Page 294 of 311



Page 295 of 311



Page 296 of 311



Page 297 of 311



Page 298 of 311



Page 299 of 311



Page 300 of 311



Page 301 of 311



Page 302 of 311



Page 303 of 311



Page 304 of 311



 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

BY-LAW NO: 2020-55 
 

Being a By-law to amend By-law No. 2001-26, as amended, the Zoning By-law for the Corporation 
of the Municipality of Magnetawan with respect to lands located on CROFT CON 5 PT LOTS 19 
AND 20 RP 42R18872 PARTS 1 AND 2 RP 42R19090 PART 3 the Municipality of Magnetawan, 
municipally known as 292 Clayton’s Bay Trail, Magnetawan (Roll: 4944 0300 04 12515 0000). 

 6 
 

WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan is empowered to pass 
By-laws to regulate the use of land pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990; 
 
AND WHEREAS the owner of the subject lands has filed an application with the Municipality of 
Magnetawan to amend By-law 2001-26 as amended;  
 
AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan deems it 
appropriate to amend By-law No. 2001-26 as amended; 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Magnetawan enacts as 
follows: 
 

1. Schedule 'A-1', to Zoning By-law No. 2001-26 as amended, is further amended by zoning 
lands legally described as Concession 5, Part Lots 19 and 20, RP 42R18872, Parts 1 and 2 
RP 42R19090, Part 3 former geographic Township of Croft and municipally know as 292 
Clayton’s Bay Trail in the Municipality of Magnetawan from the “Shoreline Residential 
Exception 18” (RS-18) Zone to the “Shoreline Residential Exception Eighteen” (RS-18) Zone 
as amended, as shown on Schedule ‘A-1’ attached forming part of this By-law. 
 

2. Section 4.2 of By-law 2001-26 is hereby amended by deleting Section 4.2.4.6 and replacing 
Section 4.2.4.6 with the following. 
 
4.2.4.6 Shoreline Residential Exception Eighteen (RS-18) Zone, as amended. 
Notwithstanding the provisions of this By-law to the contrary, within the Shoreline Residential 
Exception Eighteen (RS-18) Zone the following shall apply: 
 
1.  Minimum depth of natural vegetated buffer along the full width of the shoreline shall be 

15 metres measured at right angles to the shoreline; 
2. Maximum width of shoreline activity area 10 metres located at or near the water’s edge; 
3. Maximum area of shoreline activity area shall be 50m2; 
4. Maximum width of trail from dwelling to shoreline activity area shall be 2.5 metres; 
5. Minimum setback from water’s edge for a septic system shall be 30 metres. 
6. A secondary dwelling unit measuring 119.2 square metres in area shall be permitted. 
7. Minimum required lot area – as existing. 
8. Minimum required lot frontage – as existing.   
9. All development shall be subject to Site Plan Control pursuant to Section 41 of the 

Planning Act. 
 



 

 

This By-law take effect on the date of its passage, subject to the provisions of Section 34 (30) and 
(31) of the Planning Act (Ontario). 
 
 
READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME, passed, signed and the Seal of the Corporation 
affixed hereto this 23rd day of September 2020. 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE 
MUNICIPALITY OF MAGNETAWAN 

 
________________________________ 

Sam Dunnett, Mayor 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Kerstin Vroom, CAO/Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Schedule ‘A’ to Zoning Bylaw Amendment 2020-55 
 

292 Claytons Bay Trail 
CROFT CON 5 PT LOTS 19 AND 20 RP 42R18872 PARTS 1 AND 2 RP 42R19090 PART 3 the 

Municipality of Magnetawan, District of Parry Sound 
 

 
 

This is Schedule A to Zoning By-law 2020-55 
Passed the 23rd day of September, 2020 

 
________________________ 

Mayor 
 

________________________ 
Clerk 



Page 308 of 311



Page 309 of 311



Page 310 of 311



Page 311 of 311


